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Memorial Chamber,
Kibbutz Kiryat Anavim,
1958-60

“I have made a theater, | sculpted the interior.”

Commissioning body: Kibbutz Kiryat Anavim
Architect: David Reznik

Designation: Commemoration

Site area: 18 sg. m.

Materials: Stone, granulite (exposed aggregate),
expanded metal, rough plaster

Site: In the late 1950s Reznik was approached by Kibbutz Kiryat
Anavim to transform an existing storehouse at the local school into
a commemoration site for the kibbutz members who had fallen in
Israel’s wars. Located on a mountain slope near Jerusalem, the
kibbutz? is typified by dense, low construction on columns. The
simplicity of construction, still conspicuous in the kibbutz, required
a unique solution that would be assimilated into its surroundings
and at the same time would rise above the basic conditions to create
an intimate site of communion and observation.

Project: The programmatic ideas of the kibbutz representatives
included proposals install steps in the concourse area, use Jerusalem
stone for the pavement, design a memorial relief, a perpetual light,
a table on which to place memory books, and low seating.® Reznik
decided to minimize his intervention in the outdoor design and focus
on a total transformation of the interior. Outside the inner space he
demarcated the entrance concourse with a rough stone wall covered
with a wooden pergola that shades the entrance on summer days
and creates a drama of shadows in the small courtyard, and installed
a stone bench in it. The westward exterior wall was faced with
stone, bearing a succinct inscription in embossed copper letters:
“Memorial Chamber.”*

The specifications of the interior were given: a storehouse on
the ground floor, 3x6 m., with a low ceiling cut by a lateral beam.
Reznik chose to go along with the conditions in situ, rather than
defy them. He referred to the space as if it were a theatrical stage,
and introduced a radical change by means of sculptural construction
comprising plastered metal netting that made the right-angled walls
disappear. The result was an organic, curving cave-like space that
calls to mind the free voluminousity in Antonio Gaudi’s work, or the
plastic amorphous quality transmitted by Le Corbusier's Ronchamp
Chapel (1950-55).

Two pedestals were carved in the wall for memorial books, next
to the three narrow windows whose stained glass preserves the
darkness of the space. A low bench that was attached to the curving
wall to the right of the granulite entrance door, appears to be
swollen in a cave of sorts. A candle in the niche does not interfere
the blurry womb-like, meditative atmosphere.
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1 Reznik, quoted from a conversation with Yaakov
Malkin, see n. 1 for “The Hebrew University
Synagogue, Givat Ram Campus.”

Kibbutz Kiryat Anavim was founded in 1920 by
members of the Third Aliya (Immigration wave)
who arrived from Ukraine. They were later
joined by immigrants from Poland, Galicia,
Germany, and Argentina. The kibbutz lands were
purchased in 1912 by the Kohelet Yaacov and
Ahuzat Nahala Associations, and later
re-purchased by the JNF (KKL). The kibbutz
functions as part of Jerusalem’s agricultural
hinterland and relies on a mixed economy;

see Kibbutz Kiryat Anavim's website
http://kiryatanavim.homestead.com/index.html;
see also: Joseph Glass, “Land Acquisition and Its
Uses in the Abu-Gosh Area, 1873-1948"
Cathedra 62 (December 1991), pp. 110-114
[Hebrew].

According to letter sent to Reznik by the
Kibbutz Secretariat subsequent to previous
preparatory discussions, 12 August 1958.
According to Reznik, the Kibbutz elders had
difficulties accepting the plan, but the younger
generation supported the idea and brought
about its approval after two years of
negotiations. Ephraim Ben-Haim, who was in
charge of the project on behalf of the Kibbutz
adhered to Reznik's ideas and continued to
maintain the place after its construction.
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The Van Leer Institute, view from the north upon completion of construction 1111 D12 19XN XN 7)1 119N

North elevation 1oy min o'wan

East elevation m'natn min o'wan

South elevation 1'n1nT n'tn D'wAn

West elevation m'a1vun n'in n'wan
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(symbolizing wisdom) seems to intersect with the ascetic, right-
angle design of the adjacent Academy building (symbolizing
science). The resulting shadow, like a telescope opening up to the
sky, is reminiscent of Le Corbusier's General Assembly (1957-65)
in Chandigarh, the capital of Punjab, India.

Orientation: The plan includes the two buildings that fulfill
complementary functions. The Van Leer Institute convention
center is a centrally-planned building, encircling an exposed
concrete building shaped like a truncated cone that deviates
from the flat roofline. The inner structure contains the various
halls: a 300-seat auditorium at the entrance level, a 100-seat
convention hall and a conference room on the second floor.
Standing at the entrance one’s gaze captures the totality of the
space, including the second floor. A two-story library as well as
the administration and academic staff offices are adjacent to the
external walls throughout the height of the building, without
competing with the concrete structure at the heart of the
impressive space. Natural light filters through the crown of

concrete columns on the roof, illuminating the interior. Sitting
areas in the open space are intended for informal meetings of
researchers and convention participants.”

The Academy’s plan is lucid with straight vertical and
horizontal axes. The building is rectangular, situated on either
side of a main walking route, emerging from the main entrance,
crossing the building from west to east. Some of the rooms
(offices, restrooms-waiting rooms) extend to the right of the axis,
overlooking the back garden. Opening up on the other side of the
main axis are three sub-routes, turning toward perpendicular
wings. In the middle, a sequence of inner courtyards cuts the
room parade with visual interludes accompanied by a flow of
natural light into the space. The order and organization
contribute to the tranquil atmosphere, serving the purpose: study
and research.®

7 The interior of the convention center was
renovated in 2002, departing from the spirit of
the original plan drawn by Powsner and Reznik.

8 The last renovation of the Academy building, in
keeping with the spirit of the original plan (and
with Reznik as consultant) was implemented in
1997.
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Plan of the compound’s ground floor DNMNA 7w V77N TN 71110171
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right: The Van Leer Institute; left: Israel’s National Academy of Science DrvTn7 m7xaw'n MATZXI 7RNWD 7711 1190 :]'AN
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The Jerusalem Van Leer Institute and
Israel’s National Academy of Science,
Jerusalem, 1957-62

(beginning of activity: 1965)

“This is a place of work, not a dwelling.”

Commissioning body: The Van Leer Foundation
(Polly Van Leer)

Architects: Shimon Powsner, David Reznik
Landscape architects: Lipa Yahalom, Dan Zur
Interior design: Academy: Dora Gad, Arieh Noy;
Institute: Hana Leobenthal

Construction: Asher Miller, Moshe Schnabel
Environmental sculpture: Osip Zadkine
Designation: A center for advanced learning,
research and publication

Site area: 30 dunams (7.5 acres)

Materials: Concrete, stone

Site: The State granted the Van Leer family 30 dunams (7.5 acres)
in the Talbiya neighborhood, adjacent to the Jerusalem Theater
and the President’s Residence, to build a public institute funded
by Bernard Van Leer, a Dutch industrialist and philanthropist.
According to a 1955 agreement, the place was intended as a
“center for the advancement of human culture, aimed at paving
man's way in the modern world, while focusing on the
concentration of cultural achievements and their embodiment in
human values.”

Four architects were selected for the job: Joseph Klarwein,
Heinz Rau, David Reznik, and Shimon Powsner — who struggled
to translate Mrs. Van Leer's dreams about humanism, knowledge,
research and arts into a concrete plan. After several attempts to
converse and collaborate failed, the team fell apart® and the
project was entrusted to Powsner and Reznik, who were close in
age and architectural approach. The two worked harmoniously

and came up with a plan based on the principle “This is a place
of work, not a dwelling.” Their plan separated the Academy from
the Institute and the Convention Center in a manner that
preserves their affinity, in keeping with the program’s guidelines.*

One enters the site by means of a sloped access road,’
delimited by stone protective walls. The road ends before the
concourse, which is shared by the two buildings situated on the
hill-top.¢ The entire complex thus seems to seclude itself from the
busy street on its north, opening up southward. The Human
Forest, by French-Russian sculptor Osip Zadkine, completes the
main concourse. A vast garden extends between the two
buildings, at the back, and at the center of its plaza — a sculpture
of Albert Einstein by American artist Robert Berks.

Project: Construction in the complex, located on a hill towering
to a height of 6 meters above Jabotinsky Street, is interwoven
with the topography. Two independent institutions operate in the
complex in separate buildings, linked by a bridge. Construction in
concrete and stone creates a modernist environment, where the
buildings which differ in their design seem to complement one
another: Israel's National Academy of Science is housed in a
simple, single-story building, while the Van Leer Institute
convention center is housed in a two-story building, which
stands out in its plastic style, projecting introverted majesty.

The southern facade of the Academy building is adorned
with an arcade of sorts, which seems to gradually open the
interior to the outside. The material combination in the arcade is
fascinating: the interior wall (which is the Academy’s exterior
wall) is made of granulite; the ceiling is made of concrete, and
the columns — of hewn stone.

A band of horizontal windows surrounds the pyramidal
Institute building, adjacent to the concrete cornice, accentuating
the building’s horizontal lines. Small square windows on either
side of the main entrance and slightly below the concrete facing
mark the seam between the two floors, contributing to the
building’s fortified appearance. The horizontality is interrupted by
vertical “protrusions” in the roof: a crown of concrete columns
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1 Reznik, quoted from a conversation with
Yaakov Malkin, see n. 1 for “The Hebrew
University Synagogue, Givat Ram Campus.”
See “The Talbiya Community Center,” Kol Ha'lr,
27 March 1981 [Hebrew]. Polly Van Leer arrived
in Jerusalem in 1948 with 10 million dollars
which Bernard Van Leer, her separated husband,
dedicated to fulfilling her dream that “the light
of the Torah would spread out of Zion.” Due to
the family’s demand, the Knesset passed a
special act, granting the Van Leer Institute tax-
exemption (December 1958), a procedure that
drew considerable criticism.
3 According to Reznik, the meetings between the
four architects were accompanied by tension
and conceptual disagreement. Rau, whom
Mrs. Van Leer favored over the others, suggested
working on his own, but the sketch he
submitted was unsatisfactory, and Rau retired
from the project. Several months later Klarwein
retired as well; see Malkin n. 1 for “The Hebrew
University Synagogue, Givat Ram Campus.”
The last change of plan resulted from a meeting
between Powsner, Reznik, and Ernesto Rogers,
an Italian architect summoned by Mrs. Van Leer
to design the interior and “study the building.”
Only later they learned that Rogers had been
asked to supervise their plan. Rogers wanted
each detail in the plan to be justified, and “his
comments were enlightening,” as Reznik recalls.
In their wake, issues of space and the links
between interior and exterior were re-examined,
and it was decided to change the interior: to
create a round hall instead of an inner
courtyard, to open the back to the
landscape and partition the front elevation
from the street; see Malkin n. 1 for “The Hebrew
University Synagogue, Givat Ram Campus.”
The connection between the inner access road
and the main concourse was originally planned
as a slope, but was replaced by steps after
Gershom Shalom slipped and was injured; see
“The Talbiya Community Center,” n. 2, ibid.
6 . In the late 1980s a third building, perpendicular to
the Academy building, was erected in the complex,
serving the National Council of Higher Education.
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